Lo - EES

UNITED NATIONS

GENERAL ouEL
: A/AC.105/C.2/SR.68
A S S E M B LY 21 October 1966
ENGLISH

ORIGINAL: FRENCH

CCMMITTEE ON THE PEACEFUL USES OF CUTER SPACE

LEGAL SUB-CCMMITTEE

Fifth Session
SUMMARY RECORD OF THE SIXTY-EIGHTH MEETING

Held at the Palais des Nations, Geneva,
on Tuesday, 26 July 1966, at 3 p.m.

CONTENTS
Consideration of a treaty governing the exploration and use of outer
space, the moon and other celestial bodies (A/AC.105/C.2/L.12, L.13)
(continued)

66-25788 /

(20 p. ) ‘




A/AC.105/C.2 /SR.€8 ' .

Fnglish

Page 2

PRESENT : :

hairman: Mr. LACHS Poland
Mr. RUDA Argentina
Members: Sir Keunneth BAILEY Australia
Mr. HERNDL Austria
Mr. BAL Belgiunm
Mr. de CARVALHO SILGCS Brazil
Mr. ANGELOV Bulgaria
Mr. GOTLIEB Canada
Mr. RIHA Czechoslovakia
Mr. DELEAU France
Mr. PARTLI Hungar,
Mr. Krishna RAO India
Mr. AZIMI Iran
Mr. VINCI Italy
Mr. YAMAZAKT Japan
Mr. CHAMMAS Lebancn
Mr. TELLO MACIAS Mexico
Mr. DASHTSEREN Mongolia
Mr. GLASER Romania
Mr. KELLZERG Sweden
Mr. MORCZOV Union of Soviet Socialist
Republics

BMr. KHALLAF United Arab Republic
Mr. DARWIN United Kingdom of Great Britain

and Northern Ireland
Mr. GOLDBERG United States of America

Recresentative of the International Atomic Fnergy Ageacy:

Mr. FISKAREV
Secreteariat: " ir. STAVROPCULCS Legal Counsel

Miss CHEN Secretary of the Sub-Coomittee

/...



: j | A/AC.105/C.2/SR.68
T English
Page 3

CONSIDERATION OF A TREATY GOVERNING THE EXPLORATION AND USE OF OUTER SPACE, THE
MO0 AND OTHER CELESTTAL BODIES (A/AC.105/C.2/L.12, L.13) (continued)

The CHAIRMAN invited the Sub~Committee to take up article VIII of the

Soviet draft, corresponding to article 10 of the United States draft.

Mre MOROZOV (Union of Soviet Socialist Republics) said that even before
the adoption of the Declaration of Legal Principles governing the activities of
States in the explorafion and use of outer space, the Soviet Union, in a draft put
forvard in 1962, had proposed in principle that "the implementation of any reasures
that might in any way hinder the exploration or use oflouter space for peaceful
purposes by cother countries shall be permitted only after prior discussion of and
agreerent upon such measures betveen the countries concerned" (A/AC.105/L.2,
op. para. 6). The USSR had always been in favour of that principle, which now
found expression in article VIII of its draft treaty (A/6352). The first sentence
of that article read as follows: "In the exploration and use of outer space,
States Parties to the ﬁreaty shall be guided by the principle of co-operation and
mitual assistance and shall conduct all their activities in outer space, including
activities on celestial bodies, with due regard for the corresponding interests of
other States.” That idea seemed to be shared by the members of the Sub-Committee
and was also expressed in the United States draft. The second sentence of
article VITII which dealt with the necessity to avoid harmful contamination vhen
conducting research on celestial bodies, could be brought into line with article 10
of the United States draft. He had no objection to that article, or to the
Japansse arendment (Working Paper No. 10), which in substance would replace the
words "contamination of celestial bodies" by the expression "contamination of
outer space including celestial bodies"; his delegation would modify the second
sentence of article VIII to take account of those texts. The sentence would then
read as Tollows: "States Parties to the tresty shall conduct exploration and
research in outer space, including the moon and other celestial bodies, in such

8 manner as to avoid harmful contemination as well as adverse changes in the

[ooe



Cresulting from the return of axtra~tervestrial waiter, end
[ J

cnviecmeent ol the suw
A - - . [ S . PRl A o .
o inis enc shall, as oppropriate, taks the necessury steps . The nev text should

apoyer s purposz of article 10 of ths United States dvalt and the Je

sybicle. The rest of article VIIT would rerain unchsngad

CTond At the wembars ol the Sub-Committes would support the whole of the

article, thus wnodeds

awendoant proposed by tha Japanese dz legution to axticle VIIT oi fas

L w0 The

G
4

Soviat Avatt (orsing Papev No. 11), its wain purpose uwis 10 stipulate that iv ¢
Stote Party to +reaty had reason to belicve that an ectivity or experiment
wuld canss potentially'harmful irrericrence with the activities of other Stz
yroceedin, with any such activity or ely erilient, notify
the United dations of such activity or sxperiment in
cocordance vith (e 5 L of the United States draft)". That amcndmont contained

T o

rst, the Secretary-General of the United NWations would te

Yo dicclach
R N - . eyt et . . - N s . . 3 X P -
obLTE A or the acblvities in question in accordance with article £ the Unitza

4o
oieond, the information to be communicated to him would concaru au

covivii or eveeriment which might cause petentially harmful interisrence Vit oo

ool oL othoar Sbates forcies to the trenty. Ou the firvsu ﬁoint, it would T2

porlctered thot no agreskent had yet beon reached on the natare of 0
e o the Sseretary-Cenzrsl, and that his delegation ad N3
£ the cwend.eat (Jorking Paper Ho. &) it had proposed to articles I of the Unitel
Gtetzs drait, 1.e., to the principle that the Stetes concerned vouid provids ths

-

infopiation in quastion on 2 voluntary basis. His delegation could not tasrsicre

aoce st that part of the Japansse arendirent. On the other hand, it haed nc objecticu
. the secornd part taken sepavately. However, the game idea appeared, in a s1ightd]

% was stzted in that

i
Stets novine reason 1o believe that an activit, or e"“eriﬁent irightT
& dnd &
caues potentially ncrmrul dnterfersiace vith activities of otiney States Particzs o
Ty tverty ghoull undertale avgrupriate int.rnational consultatioas, that ovvic

£

asnt that the ceid Stete should provide information on 1Ts intentinuns: 1t wenv

[ ooe



A/AC .10 5/C.2/8R. 65
) . English
! Page 5

(r. Morozov, USSR)

without saving that no consultation could take place without pr¢or notification.

Tn his dzlegationts view, that method, winlch wos o notify these concernad betor

exparirant, was mora effective than that provosed

aroceeding with any actlvity o

Lo

o T ~ UK Qo Tiamd L - P S a1 P
vy the Japanesc deleszation, Iesides, as could be seen Ifrom the last articles of
the Sovieh draft, the USGR was act prepared to enbrust the Secretary=-General of che

ions connected with the implemsatation of the twreaby. The

rather be commuanicated u*xmctlv to the Parbles.

Hevertheless, ©o take into account certain propeaals Ln‘t had been wads on the

It

subject, his dOlegat. on weuld agree that States Parties ghould voluntarily - that
condition must never be lost sight of - submit to the Secretary-General and the
scientific community information relating to the nature and conduch of the
activitics referrad to in arbicle VIIT of the Scvict draft. At the same time, the
information conceraing the potentially harmiul eifects of an acbivi
or ermerirent must certainly be compulsory) end thalt was what article VIII

stipuleted. To make doubly certain, the article even sveciiucd that arr State Tarty

ring reason to believe that an activity or expariment planned by another State
pirht cause potentially Lawmful interference with seaceful space activities could
request consuliations on the subjcct. Iatformation concerning potentially harmful
evperinents (article VILI) and 4he informetion referred to in another article of
the draft treaty must not therefore be coniussd: comquicatl on to $tates of the
forwer saould be compulsory, wheress the latter could bs submlitted to the Secretary-
Gzneral on o volanbzry Tasis.
Taus, ©the iden underlying the Japancse amendnent was expressed 1in article VIII

2}

of the Soviet draft, and there seened no need to wmedidly the articla.

Mo YAMAZAXT (Japan) said that he would like first to explain the

arendment® (Working Paper lo. 10) proposed by his dezlegation tc article 10 of ¢
United States draft. The two drefts under study emphasized the necessity to avoid
harnful contamination, and the United States draft provided for steps to avold

aéverse changass in the cavironment oI the earth rzsulting from the return of

/l..'



n,‘.c,J\), C.2/8R.68 - L o e T A
Trnelish ‘ . o R

(lir. Morozov, USSR) o

cnvironmant ol -the eurth resuiting/from the return of ektra=te£restrial matter, and
to this end shall, as appropriate, take the necessary steps" . The new text snould
sanover the purpose of article 10 of the Uhitedrsfates draft and the Japanese
anondnent to tnat article. The rest of article » VIII would remain unchanged, and
ne hepad thwt the members of the Sub~Committes would su§§orﬁ the whole of the
article, thus omeuded.

. As to the amendirent proposed by the Japahese elégation to article VIIT ol tas
Soviat aratt (Joriking Paper No. 11), its main purpose was 10 stipulate that 11 =
ate Party to the trecalty had reason to believe that an act1v**v or experiment
would causa potentially harmful intverterence with the activities of other States
Parties "it shall, beiore proceeding with any such activity or wperiment, notify
the Jecretery~Gencral of the United Nations of such activity or experiment in
accordance vith (article 4 of the United States draft)". That amendment contained
(tvo distinct parts: Tirst, the Secretary-General of the United Hations would be

notifisd of the activities ia question in accordance with article & o thn United

o]

tates drafb; sacond, the information to be cormunicated to him would concern an
evivity or ewperiment which might cause potentially harmful interference vitn the
aeoivitios oi other States Parbles to the treaty. On the first point, it would te
reacobered that. no agresment had yet been reached on -the nature of information <o

Lo conmunicatied to the Szeretary-CGenzrel, and that his deleoatlon adherad firmly

%o the amenduent (Horking Paper Ho. L) it had proposed to article It of the United
States draft, i.e., to the principle that the States concerned would provide the
inforwation in question on a2 voluntary basis. His delegation could not therefore
accept that part of the Japanese amendrent. On the other hand, it had no objzacticn
toc the secord part taken separately. Hovever, the same idea appeafed, in a slightly

different form, in article VIII of the Soviet draft. Since it was stated in that

jovs

rticle that a State having rcason to believe that an activity or experiment might

wo

193]

se potentially hsrmiul Jntgrferencc with activities of other States Partie:
the troaty should unﬂertale appronrlatp intcrnational consultations, that obvicusly

resnt that tno said State should provide information on its intentions: it wen

7
Io..



N ot K R STy Vo .. A;: [ ,

R S B n/AC.lOS/C 2/5R. 68
S 2 S R . hnbl? sh
.,// . :n ) Cop - N ' ) i I » . ge b

(M. Morozov, USSR)

without saying that no'CQnsuItatiOn‘could.take place ‘without prior notification.

In his dslegation's vied, that *etncd, vaich was to notify those concerned before

Y o a 1.

proceeding with any activity or exps rent, Was mora affectl e than that prolosed

by the Japanese delegation. Besides, as could be seen from the last articles of

=

fhe Soviet drafi, the USSR was nobt prepared to entrust the Secre etary-General of the
United Mations with func +ions connected with the lopl nentatIon of the treaty. The
inforrmaticn in ouestion chould “"tqu be communicated directly fo the Parties.

Hevertheless, to take into account certain DTOQOSHlu that had peen iade on the
subject, his delegatjon would agree that States Parties should voluntarily - that
condition must never bhe lost sight of - submit %o the Secretary-Ceneral and the
~crld scientific community information relatln@ to the nature and conduct of the
activities referrad to in article VIII of the Scvict draft. At the same tlwe, the
provision of information conceraing the potentially harmiul 6IIGPLS of an uCthlty
or ezperiment must certainly be compulsory, and that wes what article VIII
stipulated. To meke doubly certain, the article even SEGCifiGd that ary State Tarty
having reason to believe thabt an activity or experiment planned by another State -
night cause potentially barmful interference with peaceful space'activities could
request consuliations on the subject. Iaformetion concerning potentially haszul
experiments (article VIII) and Ttha information referred to in another artlcle of
the draft treaty must not thersfore be confusad: commuﬁi on to States of the g !.
forwer should be compulsory, whereas the latter could be submitted to the, Secretary-
General on o voluntery basis. ,

Thus, the 1dea, undsrlylng the Japanese amendmznt vas expressed in article VIIT

of the Soviet draft, a and there seemed no neaa to medify the article. -

Vir. YAMAZAKT (Japan) said that he would like first to explain the L

arendment (Working Paper Ho. 10) proposed by his delegation to article 10 of the
United States draft. The two drafts under study enphasized the necessity to av01d
harnful contamination, and the United States draft provided for steps to avoid -

adverse changes ln the unVﬂronmenu of the earth resulting from the return of

“e



v

A/AC.105/C.2/SR.68" -~
English :
Page 6

(Mr. Yamazaki, Japan) T S ’;'” {‘ff; Tf "fQ3i\&,{ﬂ1>V
extra-terrestrial matter. Howevér, néither‘arfééle:VIIi/Sffihe Sovi§t_araft nor
article 10 of the United States{drafﬁ éeemed'sufficiént. Ceiéétial‘bodies, vhich
were of great interest for the scientificistudy of the univéfsé, were also an
invaluable sburce of kmowledge of geophysics, géochemistry, biélogy, gtc.; and
could provide clues to the origin of the Egrth. ,Great caré must tﬁerefore be
taken to.preserve their resources and their natural milieu. . '

His delegation also proposed an amendment to article VIIIvof the Soviet draft
(Jorking Paper No. 11). -The second sentence of the artidle would be deleted, for
the question of contamination could be dealt with separately in more detail, which
was the purpose of UWorking Paper No.'lO. There wbuld also be changes in the third
sentence. Article VIII provided that States should undertake international
consultations before proceeding with any actiVity whichrmith cause -potentially
harmful interference with the efforts of other States Parties vo the treaty. 1In
thosge conditions, the space Powers should have no difficulty in giving the
Secretary-General of the United Hatioﬁs advance noticélof such activities. The
representative of Bulgaria had stated that there was no link between article 4 of
the -United States draft and article VIII of fhg SQviet\d%aft, because the reporting
' system envisaged in article b referred to communications to be submitted after the
activities had been completed. However, article 4 of the United States draft did
nct preclude the possibility of prior notice in certain cases. In any event, it
- was essential, in the interests of safety; that any State proposing to conduct an
activity vhich might interferes with the activities of other 3tates Parties should
give the latter prior notice.

In connexion with the USSR representativefs comments on Working Parer No. 11,
he recalled taat during the discussion of article 4 of the United States araft,
his delegation had made clear its support for the idéa of corpulsory reporting as

provided in that article. His dslegation wmaintained that position.



fEngllsh Lk
Pageg7ffii,;: -

~

that tne treaty should 1nclhde a prov151on des1gned to avold contamlnatlon of

celestial bodles and adverse changes 1n the env1ronment ‘of the, earth resultlng

from the return of extva terrestrlal matter and that the USQR renresentatlve vas._. A

N

willing to 1nclude the essence of artlcle 10 of the Unlted States tcxt in’ the
draft treaty - The United States decegatlon, in 1ts’uurnfhlly suDDorted
article VIII of the ‘Soviet draft and considered that some of the emendments put ~

forvard bj Jaban mlght be 1ncluded in it It 1ntended to submlt a vorklng Daber‘

in which it had trled to ~merge artlcle 10 of Wts draf “and artlcle VIII of the ”Arifl

Soviet draft. Xnowledge of the questlons dealt w1th in, tne two tcxts was stlll
reagre and they required sc1ent1f1c study. Consultatlons were belng conducted

on the subject, partlcularly through the COSPAR Consultative Group. ‘Care must

be taken, however, not to establlsh teoo rlgld pfocedures, whlch mlﬁht hlnder<’wfﬂ

research.

Mr. NOROAOV (Unlon of Soviet ooc1a11ct Republlcs) assured the
representative of Japan that the Soviet Union was w1111ng to prov1de for two“:.
types of information in the treuty The first tyue would concern act1v1t1es\
undertaken on celestlal bodies and would be communlcated voluntarlly to ‘the

Becretary-General of the United Naulons, the 1nternat10nal 501ent1f1c communlty

and the public in gene“ 1. ‘The second type, whlch was dealt with in article VIII

of the Soviet draft treaty, was of a special nature, dlfferent from that of the.
Lnformatloq to be sunplled to the Secretary-General. vrry State Party to the
treaty would be obliped to tran smit to other parties 1nformat10n on act1v1t1es

or experiments vhlch might interfere with their owm activities and undertake -
avpropriste internat 1onal consultations before Droceedlng with any such act1v1tyj
or experiment. The Soviet Union, however, was not Urepared for a pumber of ~
reasons, to communlcate such information to the Secretary- General In _the flrst
place, it would reach the other parties for vhcm it was primarily 1ntended

mnore quicklr if it did not pass through the intermediary of the Secretary- General
of the United Nations. Furthevmore, for reasons of principle, the Soviet Unlon .

did not intend that the Secvetary -General should be the dep051tary for the treaty

nor that he should be glven‘functlons vhich mlght be interpreted:as- nlaying a rolef

“K/AC. 105 /c 1’2/SR 68

M. GOLDBERG (Unlued Staues of Amerlca) velcomed the general agreement —‘fff



- ~e ST A

AJAC.105/C.2/sR.CE L w0

Eaglish - S P I EU
(Mr. Morozov, USSR) =~ . N
in the 2 llC&blOD of the treaty by States Accbrding‘to-thejgbviet draft, the

depositaries would be the Governments Partieé’to tﬁéyﬁreaty. The only difference
between the Soviet and Jananese texts was that, acqording to the former, States
would cermunicate the necessary informatidn directly £o other‘Parties, ﬁhereas,
according to the latter, they would do so through the intermediary of the
Sec“etqu-Gene;al. The Soviet Union could not accept the latter procedure. That,
hovever, did not in any way affect the fact that the information on activities
or experiments vhich might interfere with the activities of other States Parties
to the treaty must be provided‘on a compulsory basis. It was essential to
distinguish clearly between the information transmitted- voluntarily to the
Secretary-General and the special information dealt with in article VIII of the
Soviet draft, which must be communicated on 2 compuluorr basis .to other States

Parties to the treaty.

Mr. ANGELOV (Bulgaria) stated that the Soviet draft nrovided for
appropriate internaticnal consultvation as the machinery for applying the
provisinong eantained in article VITI. The Japanese delegation, while keeping the

method »roposed in article VIIT of the Soviet draft, also proposed that the

Secratary-General of the United Nations should be informe@, as in article 4 of the
United States draft, before any achivity or expariment was undertaken that might

interfare with the activities of other States. Such a link between article VIII
of the Scoviet draft and article ” of the United States drafi seemed guestionable,
since article &t of the United States draft was concerned with %he manner in vhich
ts of their secicntific research in outer
vious that articie VIII of the Soviev
dralt dealt with a quite different question. Furthermore, article L or the
United S ates\i*a?t deglt with cormunication arber tae activity vhereas in the

other case the information would have to be provided »elfore the activity itself

was undertaken. He cculd not interoret article 4 (2) of the United States draft

in the same way as the Japanese revresentative. The use of the words "promptly"

¢}

" - s__e .
and "lcecations of such activities" indicated very clearly thet the information

1as supposed to be'nrcvided after the activity had been undertaken. That was why

/..



A/AC 105/0 2/SR 68 Lo

- ~%f’ 3,7;" ” [ 'J;:.f'\>7 1 ¥1”“3\1 ‘ . English ';, -
i 4 - - V ’ ”\‘ ‘ A ' v page 9 R
L L IR » (Nr. An elov, Buigéria)
the amendnent prdposéd by the'Jaﬁanese deiegation, which 1*n ticl VIII tof‘
article 4 of the United'States‘drafﬁ: vas not acceptable tq hl deleg ti‘ﬁ} It

"

wvas not possible to establish a 1141 between the two texts since they dealt with

two very different fields., o - ' S o

~

M. CBAB@%S (Lebanon) noted that the last part of ar ticle VIII of the

2]

ot

ovie

4]

draft reproluce the last vart of saragreph 6 of the Daclaration of Topal

)

rinciples and that the Umnu‘t+“ ate sentence contained an oollraflor to +he

d

effect that a State Party to the treat" ha nT reason to b'll“ve that an activitv
J e g

or experiment might interfere with the activities of other States Parties, should: «

:

undertaie appropriate internaticnal consultations. Any State,Paruv might also
request consultations concerning any activity or exper ment Vhlch might interfere .
with activities in the peaceful exploration .and use of outer spacc and celest ai )
bodies. He noted, however, that no obligation was placed on the State Uthﬂ} h
undertock thaﬁ,activity or experiment. That State, th refore, mlgnu or ﬁighb Hot

screde Lo the request for consultation. He asked the Soviet represen tative to

clarify the point. , f : - o
Mr. MOROZOV. (Union of Soviet Socialist Republics) stated that the text
being drafted was not a resolution or declaration, but a treaty having compulsory
forece and that it would therefore be ccmpulsory to comply with the requests for
t provided., Article VIII offered, in a sense, a double guarantee. The

~ 3 - . .

i
cbligation lay in the first place with the State vhich was going to undertake.
activities that might interfere with the activities of other Statesg. According

to the second part, however, any other State might request consultations on

. 3 -
hose achivities if the State wishing to undertake them had not communicated any
informaticon ccncerning them. Any other interested State which had reason to
belisve that its interests‘mivht be impaired. could therefore take the initiative -

in orening international consultgtions. } ] . -

mT T

Mr. COTLIEB (Canada) considered that the principles dealt xlth in
naragrapn 6 of the Declaration of Legal Principles and avulﬂle VIIT of the Soviet

text constituted one of the most important points in international lew concerning



A/AC.105/C.2/SR.68 -
English
aze 10

(1fr. Gotlieb, Canada)

the expleretion and use of outer svyace, namely thét States should conduct their
activities iu outer space with due regard for the corresponding interests of
othar States. That primcivle was closely linked with the duty of States to
co-overate with each other, vhich was laid down in the Charter of the United
Nationa, and to the fundamental idea that outer space should be used and explored
~ the benefit of all mankind.

discussions which had taken place on article VIIT and the very nature
of +he article helved %o make the Sub-Commitiee's task clearer. The internaticna
corunity was not yet in a nosition to draw up an instrument oﬁ the rights and
duties relating to the freedom of outer space. It was not 2 questicn of
indicatins “hat the nriaciples set forth in the present article were‘valid subjec
to subszquent conventions. Those principles were in themselves a starting point
end vould be applied in »ractice later, in particular in the field of liability

and the rebturn of asironauts Tt waz therefore essential to define and codify

t

now the largest possible number of peints of agreement. In 1962, for example,
nad nroposed at the Disarmament Conference that the orbiting of weapons

aw -

of mass deshruction in outer space should be prohivited. The United Wations had
accepted that principle eighteen months later and extended it to celestial bodiss

At the nresent time, the leading snuce Powers seemed to be willing tc include

|4.
=
Q
<
[ue}
o
<2
[¢Y]

such & oblization in a treety and to declare also that c<lestial be
vsed solely tor peaceful purposes and that there would be no military baseé or
panoeuvr-s on the rmoon. The Sub-Committee's task, therefore, was to reach

agreenment on a aumber of points, sc that general principles could be drawn up
-ich would govern the exploration and use of cuter space and would serve as 2

basis Tor the develcument of international space law.

The CHAIRIAN observed that the Sub-Committee had concluded the Tirst

recdéing of the essential vrovisions of the draltd treaty. He suggested that the

L2t of thos~ Drevisions should be referred to the vorking group and that the

,3

SGub-Cormities should briefly examine the other articlas which trere nct in the



A/AC 105/0 2/SR. 68
Engllsh
Page 11

v

Mr. KHALuAF (Unltea.Arab Republ¢c) submltted for the Sub—Commlttee's,

consideration the text of a new arulcle concernlng snace telecommunlcatlon (Wovsi;g

223 ho. 16), which read as follows: «

"The Parties to the treaty, recognizing the enormous potentlalltles of
space applications for[ccmmunication purposes and more specifically for sound‘
and television broadcasting, undertake to make use of such applioetions only in
accordance with the resolutions of the General Assembly which condemn using
the media of information for hostile propagenda, and urge States to utilize
them for promoting friendly relations among nations, based upon.fhe»purposes'
and Drlnc1ples of the Charter. In particular, they shall uqdertake to '
regulate at the world-wide 1evel direct broadcasting by artificial satellﬂtes
as regards both its technical and programme contenos aspects. They undertake
to refrain frem using communlcatlon satellites for dlrect broadcasting Uﬁtll
such regulations are set by the competent internaticnal organlz@tlons.

The propesal was not a new ones the  last vreambular paragrapb of the Soviet

draft treaty mentioned General Assembly resclution 110 (II); which was cohoerned
with propagands and friendly relations among nations. That resolution was also
mentioned in the preamble to the Declaraticn of Legq1 Principles adopted by the-
General Assenbly at its elgh*eenth session. His delegation therefore cons1dered
that those questions should be mentioned in a provision of the treaty which the
Sub-Committee was endeavouring to draft. It was admittedly impossible to enter,'
in such a treaty, into the details of a problem ‘which required scientific and ’
technical studies, but it was necessary to include in it an article pointing to.a
possible solution. In his deiegatioﬂ's opinion, an international treaty on the,
question of syace communication should be placed on the Lega1’Sub-Committee's
agenda. The nev article vhich the Uni ted Aved Repwblic. was prO“oeiﬁb drew
attention to the pOueﬂtlalltleS of space aprlications for ccmmunication purposes'>
it Drovi*ed for an undertak*ng by States Parties to make use of such appllcatlons
in accordance with General Assembly resolutions 110 ((II) and 1962 (XVIII); and it
mentioned the extremely important problem of direct broadcasting from,satellltes, ﬁ
vhich was of considerable importance'in the modern world. Pending the preparation
of a binding legal instrument on the subject, States Partles would undertake to
refrain frem using communication satellites Io‘,dlrect»brogucastlng. ‘There was.

.



-
o

,//A S/u.c/bR 68 ’ . ’ - o | - o . -
ﬁglish - ~ . ’ .
aze 12

=

48]

(i;r. Kballef, United Arab Republic) = 5

gtill time, in his delegation's view, to devise solutions that would make space

cenmunications an effective instrument of international co-operatlon.

lr. LOROZOV (Union of Soviet Socialist Republics) drew attention to the
progressive nature of the proposal just submitted by the reﬁresentative of the
Unitec frab Republic. The general principles on which it was based were fully in
keeping with the spirit and objectives of the proposed treaty. Those principles
were nmentioned in the presmble to the Soviet draft treaty, and nhad been mentioned
eorlier in the draft declaration submitted by the Soviet Unibn in 1962. The

Sub-Comaittee should give the United Arab Republic proposal careful consideration.

Jir, GOLDZERG (United States of America) said that the implications of the

epublic representative's proposal deserved careful study.

[¢]

Telecommunization was an extremely important subject, and the Scientific and
Pechnical Sub-Committee should give it the necessary attention. It might also be

o subject Tor discussion in the Legal Sub-Committee.

¥r. Ge CARVALHO SILOS (Brazil) said that his delegation endorsed the

basic idea behind the United Arab Republic representative'’s proposal. His
deleraticn had long urged the necessity of regulating the use of outer space for
cormunication purposes, especially for direct broadcasting by means of satellites.
i% reserved the right to take up the subject again at a latér stage in the
Suo=Cemmithee’s work.

e,

lir, Krishne RAQ (India) associated his delegation with the tasic

rrincivle underlying the proposal submitted by the representative of the United

1,

Aral Nepublic. A few necessary drafting changes could be made by the working group.

kr, DARVIN (United Kingdcm) said that the United Arab Rerublic
rerresentative’s proposal was a very interesting one which went scme way further
than the last preambular paragraph of the Soviet draft treaty. In addltlcn, it
intrcduced certain ccmplex elements which would require close examination before
he socpe of the resulting rules could be fully appreciated. Thus the ccncept of
hostile propasanda would need careful analysis bafore it'could be regarded as a

-

natber fur an express obligation. Secondly, careful consideration should be

miven to the proposal that programme content should be regulated at the world-wide




A

< f

. <. A/AC105/C.2/SR.68

SN , C . _English
- T - - 5 g - Page 13 - ,

(Mr. Darwin, United Kingdom).

B

level. That question should be‘examinéd in the light of the normal freedcm of
speech regognized‘in mary countries, and of the measure of autonemy enjoyed by
broadcasting entities under certain systems., The importance‘of such a study was
emphasized by the fact that the last sentence in the United Arab Republic proposal
would have the effect of preventing the use of cocmmunication satellites for direct
broadcasting until all the technical questions involved had been studied and

resolved. His delegation would make a careful study of the proposal.

Mr. VINCI (Italy) approved the principle underlying the draft article

subnitted by the representative of the United Arsh Rebublic. The proposal was of
the greatest interest and was in harmony with the cbjectives of the treaty under

consideration. It should be carefull& studied by each delegation and, in due

course, examined in the light of the results of the Sub-Committee's discussions, -

Mr, RIHA (Czechecslovakia) said that he had listened with interest to the
proposal subnitted by the representative of the United Arab Republic. »
Czachoslovekia had long been interested in space telecommunication programmes, and
in the Scientific and Technical Sub-Ccmmittes two years previously his delsgaticn hag
put forward the idea of elaborating the principles which shouvld govern space
ccrmunications. The idea had not been accepted at that timé. His delegation hopad
that the United Arab Republic representative's proposal would lead to a thorough

study of the problem. The Czechoslovak cdelezation would state its vievs at a later

.
-

Mr. DELFAU (France) said that his delegation was keenly interested in the
rroposal just submitited by the representative of the United Arab Republic.. The
proposal represented one of the technical aspects which should be dealt with in the
draft treaty under consideration, and it shcuwed the nesd to define very clearly the
scope of the Sub-Ccommittee's negotiaticns. His delegation reserved the risht to

speak again on the subject.

Mr. TELLO MACIAS (Mexico) said that his delegation supprorted the idea

underlying the proposal Jjust submitted by the representative of the United Arab

f

stage, but felt that there should be no objection in principle to the new draft

Republic,. He reserved the right to discuss the wording of the text at a later

article.



A/AC.105/C.2/SR.68 - T
English : : o
Page 14

The CHAIRMAN said that the text of the‘pr0posal submitfed by the
representative of the United Arab Republic would be circulated as:a working paper
and discussed in the working group. He invited the Sub-Committee to take up the
question of the settlement of disputes, which was the subject of article 11 of the
United States draft and article X of the Soviet draft.

Mr. DELEAU (France) considered it essential that a multilateral treaty of
that type should include a procedure for the binding settlement of disputes. The
Soviet text, which referred only to a customary practice, was altogether
insufficient in that respect, whereas the United States text, which recqgnized the
competence of the International Court of Justice in the matter, was satisfactory.
Tt might also be stated that the parties might agree oﬁ some other means of binding

settlement.

Mr. MOROZOV (Union of Soviet Socialist Republics) said that, when the

French representative specified what improvements he wished to be made, he himself
would consider the possibility of amending the text of the Soviet draft article X
in order to make it acceptable to all, However, there was no need to go so far as
to mention in that article all the means for the settlement of disputes which were
enumerated in the'Charter of the United Nations. ) |

He was also prepared to give favourable consideration to the proposal that
disputes relating to the interpretation and application of the treaty should be
referred to the International Court of Justice, subject to the consent of all

rarties concerned.

Mr. DARWIN (United Kingdom) said that he agreed with the observations of
' the French representative and expressed his preference for the United States draft,
which provided the assurance that a judgement binding on the parties could be
obtained. However, his delegation would also be able to accept an alternative
procedure which provided the same assurance and was equally satisfactory, if it had

the support of the Sub-Committee.

Mr. Krishna RAO (India) recalled that in 1958, in connexion with the

Conventions on the law of the sea, the States Parties to the Conventions had been

given the option of signing or not signing a separate protocol; the same had been

true of the Vienna Conventions of 1961 and 1963. India had accepted without



B o . ... - A[AC.105/C.2/5R.€8
B o o0 oo DInglish ' S
SRR .= Yo Page 15 ,

- o N Krishna Re o,‘Indié)‘

>

re%rVatloﬂ the Jﬂ”lSdlCulon of the Internatlonal C“urt of Just ce.A In thg‘case of
the Viennsa Conventlon it nad signed the optional protocol- but had refused to accept
the provision which qought to compel the oarules to‘hdve_recourse to the Court at
the desire of only one of theu because it had feared that o numbmr of tates wishing
to adhsre to 2 conveqtlon mlght be prevented from d01ng s0 by that prOV1SLOn.\ In.
the present instance, the text of article X of the Soviet draft was not entirely
satisfactory. Hie delegation could not, moreover, accept article 11 of the quted
States draft, which.would zive the Internationsl Court Jur1°dlelOQ dt the request

peg

only one of the contrac ing Dartles.

Mr. GOLDBERG (United States of America), associating hlumself wi ith the

vievs expre scd by the representatives of Franee and the United Klﬂb&Oﬂ, said uhqt
the United States draft aimed at pstab11°h1nv a definitive wmethod of qetullnb
disputes, whether throLgh reference to the Tntc*ﬂatloual Court or through 1ecourse

to eome other body vhich might be deemed approprlatv.

Mr. PARTLI (Hungary) said that the Soviet draft, wioich propased the
diplomatic channel os vae weans of settling dispufes, was suited to the existing
situation and that there was no reason to doubt its efficacy. In accordance with
that text the parties would agree, by means of diplomatic consultations, on the
usens of peaceful settlement appropriate to each case. Under =rticle 11 of the
United States draft, on the other hand, the International Court of Justice would
have compuis ry jurisdiction, & provision vhich a large number of States could not
accept. Moreover, the Court itself, in its deéision of 19 May 1953 in the
Ambstielos case and earlier, with'réfereﬁce to the interpretation of the clauses of
the pemce treaties and to the case of the Anglo-Iranian Petroleum Company, had~?’ -
recognized that no sovereign State could be cvupelled, without its conseﬁt; to’
submit legel disputes in which it was involved té arbitration Droceedings'aﬂd that
the consent of all partiss coanstituted the foundation of the Court's Jurlsdlctlon. -
irticle 36 of the Statute of the Court was, in fact, based on that prlnc;ple.‘
Furthermore, the Court recognized that its jurisdiction was limited to cases vwhere
tte declzrations of the two partles coincided or, if that was aot the case, that 1t

st proceed on” the basis of the more limited declaration. : T

fene



VAT 105/;',?/”1% €8
anclish . ,
Prme 16 , ‘ -

Ty

(1. Partli, Eungsry) ( _ -

Tn those circumstances, his delesgation could not subscribe to the United States
text and would support the Soviet proposal.

Hr. CHALWMAS (Lebanoﬁ) caia that »s the divergent positions which stemmed

ically from zeceptence or rejecticn of the compulsory Jjurisdiction of the Court
had been clearly sot forth, it was uscless to prolong the debate ca thet subject.
He oroposed that the Chalrman chould wead out the relevant articles and that ony
diccussion of the ratter should be referred to the working groups, which would
cubmit to the Sub-Committee whatever agreement it might reach.

He fully agreed with the principle underlying the impbrtant )foposal wade by
the repressntative of the United Arad Republic. It should be made ithe subject of

an article, the details of which would have to be discussed initially in the workinz

S0SUN.
‘he CHAIRMAN said he had thought that the proposal of the United Axeb
Rcpublic misht lesd to sn exchengs of views which ould beve enabled those vho wars

interested to etste tueir positions; the working grous vwould then have ewbarked on
a detniled éiscussion. If thers were no further speakers on that subject, the
Suh-Cozmittee could take up the other articles, which related essentis 11y to the
two oroblems of accession and ratification. It couls deal simultaneously with

o

article XI of the Soviet draft snd srticles 13, 1k, 17 and 18 of the United States

drait, as thzy 21t with the sz.ie subject; it could then examine srticles 15 and 1€
of the United States draft, whicn 22d no counterpart in the 5¢ oviat draft.

<

M. CHAILAAS (Lebanon} said thnt elthough hs stood by his proposal, he vwas

not opposed to the Sub-Cowmmittee': enraging in a brief discussion

=
)
'i

i
orove uzeful. He fezrad, however, tiet a dizcussion 5f a pelitical nature might

snsue.

Tnz vhhl-mmh iavited the Sub-Committee to discuss the articles in Juestior

[N

osgible,

<
e

Mr. RUDA (Arzeatine) said he would like to reaffirm the traditional
pocition of his country, namely, thct the Argentine Governtent could nobt support s
provision which wizht lead to a legal decision on & dispute without its having
signified its agreement in advance in each perticular case, srgentina had
rceogznized the cowpulsory jurisdiétion of the Court only in certain exceptional

casss yelating exclu51vely to humanitarian declslons.
~E



oo , S o A/AC.105/C.2/5R.68
T ; o . L . ZEnglish
I o Lo Do - Page 17

A

_The CHAIRMAN said that with the statement by the Argentine representative.

he tock it that the Sub-Committée had.completed its. discussion of article X of the
Soviet draft and article ll'of the Unitéd States dréﬁt and that it could proceed to
take up article XTI of the Soviet draft and articles 13, 14, 17 and 18 of the United
States draft. ’ ”

Mr., MOROZOV (Uhion of Soviet Socislist Republics) said that although
article XT oé the Soviet draft appeared among what were called the {inal clauses of
he treaty, it should be regarded as one of the treaty's key provisions. Paragraph 1
of that article stipulated that -the treaty was open to all States for signature,.
To take a different position, for political reasons having nothing to do with the
United Nations Charter or with the purposes of the treaty, would be to jeopardize
the constructive work which had been accomplished. While he respected the various
points of view on that subject, he appealed to all delegations, in view of the'
exceptional importance and lofty objectives of the treaty in question, to put aside’

their usual objections.

Mr. GOLDEZRG (United States of America) said that the wording of article 12

of the United States dvaft was based on that used in United Nations treaties and
resolutions. On the question of the way in wvhich States were to be invited to
accede to a breaty, there were differences of opinion which resulted from long-
standing political situations. The United States position on qpat subject was well
knowm, and he hoped that the Sub-Committee, after a brief exchange of views, would
first settle the essential questions raised by the treaty before taking up the '

Tinel clauses.

Mr. RTHA (Czechoslovakia) said that he supported the views of the
revresentative of the USSR. His deleszation could not accept the discriminatory
provision in article 12 of the United States draft, which was contrary to the.
essential idea underlying the treaty, namely, that the exploration of outer space
and of celestial bodies should be conducted for the benefit of all mankiéd. All

States should be able to accede to that treaty.

’

//.00



A/AC.105/C.2/SR,.6E _ o ,
English ‘ T -
Page 18 : ‘ ‘ T ‘

)

Mr. Krisana RAO (india) said that, in his de egation’ E v1“w5 treaties

‘should uwaquestionably be oped %o all States for s“gnature. Any other arrangement
youid run counter Lo the concent of universality on which a great many of the
provisions ol the treaty were based - including fhose relating to international
liability and +the usz of outer space for the benefit of all mankindg - =and would
give rise to the probleus wvhich had bzen exoﬂflenﬂe& in connexion with disarmament.
He rscalled thet the Moscow treaty banning nuclear weapons tests was open to all
States for signabturae, »

is delegation could not sccept the Soviet proposal that the dspositaries of
the treaty should be certain Governments, presumably those of th@ UGSR and the
United States. The Seeretary-General, who was the depositary of all treaties,
should likevisz be thez dzpositary in that case, for such an arrangenent could net
but facilitate his activities in the matter in question.

He was avare that the awplication of his two proposals would give rise to
problems in connexion both with thz discharge of the Secratary-CGeneral's functicns
and wita the meaning of the words "all States", but he was sure that the General

Aszembly could reazdily solva toem.

iy, DARWIN (United Xingdom) said that, in his view, it would be advisable
to reach agressent on the substantive clauses of the treaty belore tegirning
consideration of the final clauses. Since the treaty was being drawn up under the
auspices of the "mited Nations, the provisions of the United States draft seemed

preferable,

Mre MORGZOV (Uaion of Soviet Socialist Republics) said that the opreonernis

o7 his proposal that ths treaty should be apen to all States fer signature had

confined themselves te peinting out that the corresponding provisions of article 2

of the United States dralt were based on General Assembly resplutions against wiieh,

roreover, his delegation and many other delegations had voted. His delegation
considerad that the quastion of determining which States should be pariies to tre
treaty was a guastion of substance.

He was grateful to the representative of India for having approved the first

part of article XI of the Soviet draft, but he could not agree that the General

/.:ooo



e

S R e A/AC 105/C. 2/SR 08
e S oo o English- | , :
. Page19 - -

-7 (Mx, Morozowv, USSR)

Assermbly should be asked to define the words "all Statev"; Cir“umsfanﬂos being!
waat they were, 1t would not be very’ dlfflcul* to gueus vhat kind of dec1s'on the
General Assembly would mqke. It vas not for the General Assembly to rule on the
issue - Just as it hadvnot béen called upon to do'SO‘in the case of the Moscow
treaty of 1963, The 690181on should be made. by the Sub-Committee

Uith regard to paragraph 2 of article XI, if the S’cretartheneral berue ‘the
Gepositary for the treaty, he would have to ask the General Assembly which States
could be parties to it, and thalt would in effect cantiadiét the principle szt forth

o

in raragraph 1 of the articles. In the Soviet dole”atlon's view, the solution
adooted in the Moscow treaty should be followed in that instance too. With régard
to the cciment by the representatlve of India that, under the Soviet draft, the
dzpositaries of the treaty would be the United States and the Soviet Un nion, it
should be noted thgt when the provisions concerning the depositaries of the
agreement on assistance to astronauts had been conéidered, the Soviet delegation .’
had implied that certain Aslan countries could also be depositaries; once fhe
rrinciple that the depositaries would be States had been acknowledged, it would be

easy enough to reach agreement on the cholce of those States

Mr., Krishna RAO (India) said that, unlike the Moscov tizaty and the

Antarctic treaty, which had been concluded between Govermments, ths treaty under
discussion was to be coacluded under United Nations auspices aﬁd, as such, should
be deposited with the Socrﬂtary-General. With regard to the meaning of the words
"211 States"”, he h;mselz, 1like the representative of the Soviet Uhion; had been
fidhticg for a number of yeurs for universality of membershin in the United Nations.
It was not for the Sub-Committee to define the words "all Sﬁatés"; in any case, a
provision that the Secretary-General would be the depositary of the treaty would in
2y be incompatible with the provision that the treaty should be open to all

States for signature.

Mr. MOROZOV (USSR) said that the question of universality of membership
in the United Nztions went far bQVOﬂd the framework of the treaty under discussion
20d that the effectiveness of the United Nations for the maintenance of international

reace and security was in large weasure dependent upon it. However, the principle

[eer



A/AC.105/C.2/SR.68 ‘ ' LT T
Inlish - : - ' o ‘ -

Page 20

(Mr. Morozov, USSR) ‘ g

of universality was not yet a fact, and the present situation, as well as the
errors comnitted in certain regards by the Secretariat; had to be borne in mind., He
woadered what the attitude of the Secretariat ﬁould be if, as in the United States
draft, the Secretary-General was £o become the depositary for a treaty to which all
States couwld become parties. '

He thereiore urged that paragraphs 1 and 2 of arvicle XI of the Soviet draft

shoula be adonted, since the provisions in question were essential if the treaty

2
>
pl}

r
{.

o be an international instrument binding upon all States Parties to it.

C""

Was

The CHAIRMAN sucggested that the Sub-Cormittee should complete its

discussion or the srticles under consideration the following moraning and not begin

consideration of the preanble at that stage. The working group would then begin

its consideration of the draflt treaty article by article.

ON
.
N
(@}
.
(3]
.

p-

=
F
¢
=]
(0]
[§%
ot
i
o]
(e}
=
O
0
(v
W]
ol






